
MINUTES 
GILFORD PLANNING BOARD 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2010 
CONFERENCE ROOM A 

7:00 P.M. 
 

The Gilford Planning Board met for a public hearing on Monday, 
September 20, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in Conference Room A in the Gilford 
Town Hall. 
 
In attendance were: Chair-Polly Sanfacon, Vice Chair-John Morgenstern; 
Selectman’s Representative, Kevin Hayes; Regular Members: Richard 
Waitt, Richard Vaillancourt, and Richard Sonia.   
 
Alternate(s): Dennis Corrigan, Wayne Hall and Chan Eddy. 
 
Member(s) absent: Jerry Gagnon. 
 
She appointed W. Hall to replace regular member J. Gagnon. 
 
Also present were John B. Ayer, Director of Planning and Land Use and 
Stephanie Verdile Philibotte, Technical Assistant. 
 
P. Sanfacon led the Pledge of Allegiance, introduced Board members and 
staff, and read the rules of procedure for the public hearing. 
 
P. Sanfacon introduced the first application.  
 
  Eric E. & Gail Jordan 
  Applicants propose a Boundary Line Adjustment and Lot 

Merger between Tax Map & Lot #263-021.000 and Lot #263-022.000 
located at 1200 & 1218 Cherry Valley Rd. in the Limited Residential 
Zone and Natural Resource Residential Zone.  Boundary Line 
Adjustment Plan Review.  File #2010000332. 

 
J. Ayer discussed the waiver requests made by the applicant that are for 
steep slopes and wetland delineation. 
 
Motion made by K. Hayes, seconded by R. Sonia, to grant the waiver 
requests. Motion carried with all in favor. 



 
Motion made by R. Vaillancourt, seconded by R. Waitt, to accept the 
application as complete.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
S. Smith, representing the application, gave a brief presentation to the 
Board.  He explained the location of the site and both lots are owned by 
the applicants.  He said both lots have single family dwelling units and the 
applicants live on TML# 263-022.000.  He said there are people that rent 
the house on TML#263-021.000 and they are interested in buying the 
house with a reduced amount of acreage than what exists.   
 
K. Hayes asked if there are any plans to develop the back land area and S. 
Smith said not at this time.  He said the back lot is very steep and the 
terrain is not conducive to development. 
 
P.  Sanfacon opened the hearing for public input; being none she closed 
the public hearing. 
 
P. Sanfacon introduced the next application. 
 
  Lin & Twei Bi  
  Applicants propose to add a picket fence along the frontage of 

their property,  relocate 36 seats previously approved for the patio 
to 9 tables to be placed in the lawn, and to create 16 new gravel 
parking spaces on Tax Map & Lot #201-002.000 located at 89 Lake 
Street in the Commercial Zone.  Amended Site Plan Review.  

  File #2010000337. 
 
J. A explained waivers requests are for contour mapping and wetland 
mapping.  He said he agrees with the waiver requests.   
 
Motion made by R. Vaillancourt, seconded by R. Sonia, to grant the 
waivers.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
Motion made by R. Sonia, seconded by R. Waitt, to accept as complete. 
Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
D. Clark, representing the application, gave a brief presentation to the 
Board.  He explained the proposal is to add a picket fence along the 
frontage and allow 36 previously approved seats to be placed within the 



lawn area.  He reviewed the egress areas that the fire department is 
requiring and highlighted them on the plan.   
 
J. Ayer discussed his proposed conditions of approval and he said he 
needs to change one of the conditions of approval regarding the indoor 
music and noise and that this application does not address the sound issue 
and it is up to the Board to decide if they want to include that. 
 
P. Sanfacon asked if the situation with the location of the fence has been 
resolved and D. Clark said yes. 
 
J. Ayer spoke about the pond located in the lawn area and explained the 
Code Enforcement Officer is recommending a barrier be placed around the 
pond for safety reasons. 
 
P. Sanfacon referred to the three page letter from an abutter Alex 
Garabedian and explained he has objections to the proposal and since the 
letter is so long it will be submitted as part of the record.  JA explained Mr. 
Garabedian objects to the noise from the site, the existing zoning violations 
on site among others as discussed in the letter. 
 
J. Ayer read a letter from Eastern Shores Condominium Association 
objecting to the proposal and complaining about the noise coming from 
Oriental Gardens. 
 
J. Morgenstern asked about Meadowbrook and what their limitations are for 
noise.  J. Ayer said they are limited to 11:00 P.M. 
 
K. Hayes said there were issues and complaints with this site around 
Motorcycle Week and asked for an explanation.  J. Ayer explained there 
was outdoor entertainment during Bike Week they were not approved for, a 
fence was installed without approval, and noise complaints were received 
in the Department of Planning and Land Use.  He said the applicant 
received the notice of violations at that time and has been going through 
the site plan process this summer.  
 
Li Bi, owner China Bistro, spoke about the letter from Eastern Shores and  
it is the first time he has heard about it.  He said the outside seating and 
music during Motorcycle Week was for two days only and they are not 
doing it now.  He said they used to have bands inside but they have 



changed to only using a DJ and they have added additional doors to 
reduce the noise. 
 
K. Hayes asked about access control and D. Clark explained how the 
customers will use the gates outside and the front entrance.  K. Hayes 
asked what would stop the customers from going to the bathroom and not 
paying the check.  His concern is having the Gilford Police having to be 
called to the site repeatedly.  Lin Bi said he is not concerned about that 
because after 27 years in business he has only two instances where 
people have left without paying the check. 
 
Discussion ensued about whether the applicant will be requesting outside 
music.  Lin Bi wants to have outside music in the patio area during 
Motorcycle Week. 
 
P. Sanfacon explained the Board could place a condition of approval that 
would not allow outside music and she wants Lin Bi to understand that.  
He said he understands.  He said he received an entertainment permit that 
allows him to have music on the patio.  He is also approved to serve liquor 
on the patio area. 
 
K. Hayes asked if they are only using a DJ and Lin Bi said they have not 
used bands in 7 years but they could have bands in the future or for some 
weddings. 
 
J. Ayer asked if there is a way to reduce the noise of the bass or drums 
because that is what the neighbors are complaining about.  Lin Bi said he 
already has made changes to the buildings by adding two doors to diffuse 
the music and it would be difficult to reduce it more from a business point of 
view. 
 
K. Hayes said the letters from the abutters are recent complaints about the 
noise. 
 
P.  Sanfacon opened the hearing for public input. 
 
Louise Draper, abutter, Eastern Shores Condominium, explained they have 
always heard the bass and music noise coming from the restaurant and 
they bought the unit knowing that.  She said during Motorcycle Week the 
music was extremely loud and she found it very disturbing.  She said his 



Entertainment Permit has no restrictions to noise on it and she is very 
concerned about the noise and tires squealing very late at night and early 
in the morning.  She said that was not the first time the police have been 
called to the site for noise complaints.  She asked if the people will be 
sitting outside, will there be grilling outside, will alcohol be served, any time 
restrictions for noise or duration for when they are allowed to have outside 
music, is there a limit to the number of people that will be allowed there.  
She said the noise is the biggest concern and that has the most negative 
impact on her and her enjoyment of her property. 
 
Fred Clausen, abutter, Easter Shore Condominium owner, he said the 
cottages are not insulated and the noise is extremely loud.  He said also 
owns cottages next to the Naswa and he has a history of dealing with noise 
from outside bands and bars and he is against approval of this application. 
 
Bob Draper, abutter, Eastern Shore Condominium, he said the music is 
going to bother him since it is so close to his units.  He would like the 
Board to approve the application with the condition of approval of not 
allowing the music to be played outside. 
 
P. Sanfacon closed the public hearing. 
 
P. Sanfacon introduced the next application. 
 
  G. G. Real Estate Investment General Partnership 
  Applicants propose to subdivide a 21.41 acre lot into a 4-Lot 

subdivision with lots ranging in size from 1.55 acres to 13.37 acres on 
Tax Map & Lot #203-250.000 located at 366 Morrill Street in the 
Single Family Residential Zone. Subdivision Plan  Review.  File 
#2010000341. 

 
J. Ayer said there are waiver requests submitted by the applicant.  D. 
Clark reviewed the waiver requests and explained there are no steep 
slopes and only a small wetland area on the entire subdivision.  J. Ayer 
said there is enough buildable land area for the lots and that is not the 
issue for the waiver requests.  He said he agrees with the waiver requests. 
 
Motion made by R. Waitt, seconded by R. Sonia, to grant the waiver 
requests. Motion carried with all in favor. 
 



Motion made by R. Sonia, seconded by R. Vaillancourt, to accept the 
application as complete.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
D. Clark, representing the application, gave a brief presentation to the 
Board.  He explained the subdivision proposal and where the lots are 
located.  He said they submitted their application to the NHDES for 
approval and it is in the process of being approved. 
 
D. Corrigan asked if the driveways were approved.  D. Clark said he spoke 
with D. Muzzey and there is no issue with the proposed driveway locations. 
J. Ayer said the addresses and new Tax Map & Lot numbers will be 
assigned and placed on the final plan before it is signed. 
 
P Sanfacon opened the hearing for public input. 
 
George Hurt, 27 Weathering Heights, He asked about the back property 
line and if they are using the stone wall as the property line. D. Clark said 
yes it will be described in the deeds.  G. Hurt asked about the driveway 
location for Lot #3 and if it abutted is property.  D. Clark said yes. 
 
Patricia Wood, abutter 229 Morrill Street, she said the proposed 
development is directly across the street from her home.  She is 
handicapped and is very concerned about the location of one of the 
driveways for Lot #1 to be place further down on Morrill Street.  D. Clark 
explained that is safer to locate them directly across from each other.  D. 
Corrigan agreed that it is a safety issue for Ms. Wood backing out of her 
driveway.  The Board and D. Clark discussed the possibility of moving that 
driveway. 
 
P. Sanfacon closed the public hearing. 
   

     DELIBERATIONS 
 
  Eric E. & Gail Jordan 
 
Motion made by R. Sonia, seconded by K. Hayes, to approve the 
application with the following condition(s): 

 
1. Any other federal, state or local approvals that may be required. 

 



Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
  Lin & Twei Bi 
 
Motion made by K. Hayes, seconded by R. Sonia, to table the application 
until October 18, 2010, in order for the Board to do a site visit.   
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
D. Corrigan wants the Board to check with Town Counsel and see if they 
can regulate the noise at the property line. 
 
C. Eddy suggested the Board go to the site individually at night to 
experience the noise at the sight. 
 
Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
The Board decided to hold a site walk on October 14, 2010 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
  G. G. Real Estate Investment General Partnership 
 
Motion made by R. Vaillancourt, seconded by R. Sonia, to approve the 
application with the following condition(s): 
 

1 Approve the application subject to the applicant obtaining any 
other federal, state, or local approval that is required. 

2 Lot numbers and addresses are assigned and shown on the final 
plan and the driveway for Lot #1 is moved at least 15 feet, with the 
approval of DPW and the developer. 

 
Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
Other Business- 
 
J. Ayer spoke about Pat Tarpey coming to the Planning Board meeting to 
speak with the Board about wetlands.  P. Sanfacon wants a time limit for 
the presentation.  J. Ayer said there is a video presentation that is about 
30 minutes in length and the Board will be willing to allow 45 minutes for 
her presentation.  J. Ayer is concerned about the work load if there are 
new applications.  He said he would talk to P. Tarpey about attending the 



meeting on October 18, 2010. 
 
J. Ayer reviewed the site plan regulations about changes and 
improvements to property as to when a site plan application is needed.  He 
reviewed the regulations related to “permanent”.  J. Ayer is asking the 
Board if they want to expand the exemptions to include agriculture to be 
exempt from the regulations. 
 
Andrew Howe, owner of Beans & Greens, he explained he is requesting a 
permit to install temporary greenhouses in his fields.  He explained the use 
and purpose of his existing greenhouses.  He is proposing to be allowed to 
grow his crops in the ground under the cover of temporary greenhouses.  
He said he spoke to Dave Andrade, and explained his proposal and he was 
told he needed a site plan amendment for every temporary greenhouse.  
He reviewed the RSA’s for Planning and Land Use and for agriculture and 
the town’s regulations.  He said his interpretation of the regulations is to 
not unduly restrict agriculture.  He said the proposed greenhouses could 
be a huge part of his farm and he has received a grant from the Dept. of 
Agriculture to study his land and use of fertilizers and pesticides and by 
using the temporary greenhouses, he hopes to reduce the amount of 
fertilizers and pesticides.    
 
J. Morgenstern is concerned that the greenhouses will be in a permanent 
location.  A. Howe said that the purpose of the scheme is to move them 
around. 
 
Discussion ensued about how to allow the temporary greenhouses to be 
exempt. 
 
A. Howe explained that David Andrade has considered his farm stand a 
commercial use and therefore he has to have site plan amendments every 
time he makes a change.  A. Howe referred to RSA 21: 34-A and 672:A 
that defines farm stand and agriculture uses as exempt from regulations. 
 
The Board discussed having a public hearing to amend the site plan 
regulations on October 4, 2010. 
 
D. Corrigan updated the Board on the CIP and they voted to recommend 
building a police station for one million and repair and replace windows and 
siding for the Town Hall.  He explained there will be two separate warrant 



articles for the work. 
 
J. Ayer also spoke about a paving company becoming a home occupation.  
He explained this is the type of application that the Board has been 
discussing that may not qualify for a home occupation. 
 
J. Ayer said the Belknap County Economic Development Council is asking 
the Town of Gilford for suggestions and asked the Board for input potential 
development projects. 
 
Minutes- Motion made by J. Morgenstern, seconded by K. Hayes, to table 
the minutes from August 30, 2010. Motion carried with all in favor.    
 
Adjournment – Motion made by R. Sonia, seconded by K. Hayes, to 
adjourn at 8:55 p.m.  Motion carried with all in favor. 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Stephanie Verdile Philibotte 
Technical Assistant 


